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Independent Audiors Report

To the Members of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited (the “Company™)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statemenits.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

See Note 27 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged in the | Our audit procedures included:
business of owning hotels. Ks revenue
comprises hotel revenue (including room
revenue, food and beverage revenue and
revenue from recreation and other services)
and property management and space rental | « Tested the Company's revenue recognition

¢+ Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key conirols over
revenue recognition process.

revenue. accounting policies are consistent with the
Regislared Office:
BSR&Co (ap hip firm wilh Regiskcation No. BAg1223) converted intko B S R & Co LLP {a 141h Floor, Cenliral B Wing and North © Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limitad Liability Partnership with LLP Registralion No_ A4B-8181) with afect fram Oclober 14, 2013 Cenlar, Express Highway gaon {Eas(), Mumbai - 400062
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

The accounting policies for different revenue applicable accounting standards.
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial

statements. + Using statistical sampling basis, tested the

revenue transactions recorded during the year

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the (including year-end cut off testing) with the
underlying documents such as invoices, bank

Company and there is risk of overstatement of .
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to collections and other relevant documents, as [

achieve targets and earnings expectations. applicable.
* Tested the journal entries relating to revenue

Considering the above, we have identified recognised during the year based on specified
revenue recognition as a key audit matter. risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
irregular items.

* Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating
to the revenue recognition made in the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are respansible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concermn and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or efror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matter stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors}
Rules, 2014.

¢. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income}, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. [n our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
Page 3 of 12
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 10 April 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporiing under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47(v) to the financial statements; no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47(vi} to the financial statements, no funds have been recsived by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (*"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the respective independent auditor's reports of service organisations available
for part of the year and in the absence of the independent auditor's reports of service
organisations for the balance period, for accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of
account relating to general ledger, food and beverage revenue and procure to pay process, which

Page 4 of 12
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

are operated by third-party software service providers, we are unable to comment whether audit
trail feature for the said softwares was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions, recorded in the respective softwares.

{ii) In the absence of an independent auditor's report from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 in
relation to controls at a service organisation for an accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account relating to payroll, which is operated by a third panty software service provider,
we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and
operated from 1 January 2025 to 31 March 2025 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

{iii) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
relating to revenue process for the period from 01 April 2024 to 03 November 2024,

(iv) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software
used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger.

Further, for the accounting softwares for which audit trail feature is enabled and operated effectively,
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of
our audit. Additionally, the audit trail, where enabled and operating effectively, has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;101248\W/W-100022

o

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBC92042
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(B (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particufars of intangible assets.

i (&)

{c)

(d)

(e}

(ii) (a)

{b)

(iif)

()

W)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year ended 31 March 2023. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Acccording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements is held in the name of the Company. However, original title deed is under lien with
financial institution for the loan facilities availed by the Company. Therefore, we could not verify
the same. However, we have received independent confirmation from security trustee for the
same.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our apinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ji)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a} to 3(ii}(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3({v) of the Order is not applicable.
Page 6 of 12
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

{vi)

{vii) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though
there has been slight delay in one case of Tax Deducted at Source. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute the dues {Rs. in which the payment
millions) amount
relates
The Provident 0.27 | March 2019 15  Aprl | Not yet paid
Employees’ Fund 2019
Provident
Fund and
Miscellaneou
s Provisions
Act, 1952
Central Interest 0.30 | December # Not yet paid
Goods and | liability on 2017 to
Services Tax | Goods and August 2021
Act, 2017 and | Services Tax
State Goods
and Services
Tax Act, 2017

it These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the period December 2017 to August

2021,
(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

4

]
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025 (Continued)
Name of the Nature of the | Amount (Rs. | Period to which Forum where
statute dues in millions) the amount dispute is
relates pending
Central Goods | Penalty on 26.50 April 2020 to Commissioner
and Services delay in deposit December 2020 | (Appeals-I)
Tax Act, 2017 | of GST {except July Customs, Central
2020) Tax, Hyderabad

{viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

U

() (@)

(b}

() (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company also has interest free loan amounting to INR 392,69 millions
from the holding company, repayable at the option of the Company and accordingly classified
as "Other equity”. As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company, there has been no
default in repayment thereof.

Further, as at 31 March 2025, the Company also has interest free loan amounting to INR 88.50
millions from holding company, repayable on demand and accordingly classified as "current
borrowings”. As the aforesaid loan has not been recalled by the holding company, there has
been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the company, we report that the company
has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to INR 114.88 millions for long term
purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{(x){a} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
300(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company

Page 8 of 12
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

{xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(v

(xvi} (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{xvil}

(aviii)

(xix)

has been noticed or reported during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations previded to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3{xvi){d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. However, the Company
has incurred cash losses of INR 19.13 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2025. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2025
by INR 305.38 millions.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeable future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
Page 9 of 12
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limlted for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and managemenit plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of mesting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a persiod of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

{(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3000(a) and 30x((b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

5

'éhweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25509822BMXIBC9042
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI Hotels
{(Ahmedabad) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemnal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statsments. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
Page 11 of 12
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provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being mads only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timety detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

&

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICA) UDIN:25509822BMXIBC9042
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SAMH! Hoiels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS101GI2005P TCO45397

Balance Sheet ag at 31 March 2028

(4l amounts in Rupees Miflior, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capita! work-in-progress
Right-of-use asset
Invesiment property
Other nangible assets
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets {nat)
Orther tax assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financia] agsets
Trads receivables
Cagh and cash equivalents
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents above
Other financial aggets
Other current assets
Taotal current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Taotal equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financia! liabilities
Bomowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilisies
Total non- curvent liabilities

Current liabillties
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease Iiabilities
Trade payables

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

- total ding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Others financial liabilities
Other current lizbilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Total liabilitles

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from Mote | to Mote 48 form an intepral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date artached

Ffor BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Acconntanis
ICAIL Firm Registration No - 101248W/rW-100022

Shwetn Kumar
Parmner
Membership No : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Dare: 28 May 2025

As at Asat
Note 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
3 2,092.89 2,200.51
3 30.53 .
3 37127 101.22
3 - 143.00
4 - 0.89
5 13523 3333
6 = 2
7 21.30 54,78
3 2.89 4.81
2.680.11 2,538.54
9 453 6.62
10 88.35 130,17
11 26.84 20.14
11a 50.49 93.14
12 111 0.66
13 26.84 27.24
198.16 27707
2.878.27 2,816.51
14 21.65 21.65
15 11,283.78) {1,232.73)
{1,262,13) {1,211.08)
16 3,511.69 -
17 71.74 9.10
18 1.95 1.75
19 3.51 2.69
20 47.97 50.54
3,636.86 64.08
21 279.00 3,725.92
23 741 0.79
22
12.4] 736
148.71 148.35
24 22.98 46.39
25 3099 3290
26 2.04 1.80
£03.54 3,963.51
4,140.40 4,027.5%
2878.27 2.816.51

(225

For and on behalf of Board of Dirceiors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmegubad) Private Limited

|lt ajat .\In‘ru
Director
DIN: 06813081

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Care: 28 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Data: 28 May 2025



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN U55101GJ2Z005PTC045397

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2028
{All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations
Orther income
Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

{tems that will not be reclassified io profit or loss

- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations
- [ncome tax relating to items mentioned above
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Tatal comprehensive loss for the year

Loss per equity share
Face value of INR 10 cach
Basic (INR}

Diluted (INR)

Note

27
28

29
30

33

3
32

34

The notes from Note | to Note 43 form an integrzl part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101243W/W-100022

/
Shweta Kumar

Partner
Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

1,361.41 1,288.78
19.13 11.44
1,380.54 1,300.22
98.30 99.54
155.48 134.82
572.06 612.90
825.84 847.26
554,70 452.96
462.56 482.81
142.97 149.39
605.53 632.20
(50.83) (179.24)
(50.83) (179.24)
0.22) 0.22)
(0.22) 0.22)
(51.05) (179.46)
(23.48) (82.79)
(23.48) (82.79)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limite

re

ajay Mehra
Director
DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

as
Direst
DIN; 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2023



SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN U55101GJ2005PTC045397

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortisation of income received in advance
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Rental income
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Lease income
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest on income tax refund
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Operating profit before movement in assets and liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
Decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increasef{decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in provisions
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Cash generated by operating activities
Income taxes refunded / {paid) - net (including interest on tax refund)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits
Bank deposits made
Interest received
Net cash used in from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Equity component of interest free loan received from holding company
Equity component of interest free loan repaid to holding company
Repayment of current botrowings (net)
Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company received
Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company repaid
Finance costs paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(50.83) (179.24)
142.97 149.39
(3.20) (3.20)
0.30 1.12
(1.63) (2.16)
284 5
7.51 1.63
462.56 482.81
: (0.25)
(6.13) (5.43)
(3.55) ©.19)
©.17) 0.20)
544.99 44427
2.09 0.31)
34.31 (19.41)
(57.74) 14.11
0.71 0.91
7.95 (38.96)
0.35 (36.97)
0.84 1.47
(31.32) (23.17)
502.18 341.94
37.03 (24.19)
539.21 317.75
(84.74) (43.82)
0.57 3
32.14 574.76
(89.71) (619.45)
4.95 5.43
(136.79) (83.08)
3,750.00 3,825.50
(3,829.25) (2,910.17)
: 82.12
: (82.12)
- (14.34)
210.00 2
(121.50) :
(398.32) (1,209.99)
(6.65) (0.79)
(395.72) (309.79)
6.70 (75.12)
20.14 95.26
26.84 20.14




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
CIN US5101GJ2005PTC045397
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts {with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Cash on hand

Movement in financial Habilities - Borrowings including accrued interest

Opening Balance

Changes from financing cash flows

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Repayment of non-current borrowings

Repayment of current borrowings (net)

Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company received
Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company repaid

Finance costs paid

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense

Closing Balance

iti. Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars
Opening balance
Additions/adjustment {refer note 43)

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss as interest expense

Payment of lease liabilities
Closing balance

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

16.40 10.05
10.04 9.83
0.40 0.26
26.84 20.14
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3,725.92 3,556.17
3,750,00 3,825.50
(3,829.25) (2,910.17)
- (14.34)
210.00 -
{121.50) -
(398.32) (1,209,99)
453.84 478.75
3.790.6% 3.725.92
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
9.89 9.63
69.68 -
6.23 1.05
(6.65) (0.79)
79.15 9.89

iv. Cash Flows from operating activities section in statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method® as set out in the Ind

AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes from Note [ to Note 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101243W/W-100022

.
Y

Parmer
Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

/mwgé

/ Rajat Mchra
Director

DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated in India on 1 February 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act
and is limited by shares. The registered office of the Company is at Behind Ganesh Meridian Complex,
S.G Highway, Sola Road, Sola, Ahmedabad, Daskroi, Gujarat, India, 380060 and the corporate office
of the Company is situated at 14th Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City, Phase-II, Gurugram, Haryana,
India, 122002.

The Company is a privately held hotel development and investment company with focus on operating
internationally branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of owning internationaily branded hotels across
key cities in the Indian sub-continent. Presently, the Company has one hotel under it (Sheraton,
Hyderabad) which is operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS}) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 28 May 2025.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 2.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

Also refer Note 41 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

D.

Critical estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is:

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period.

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible
periods are reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year is:

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ii) Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in

progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions
regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition
and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets
at the end of each reporting date.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

iify Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values,

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
Note 38 for further disclosures.

v) Measurement of expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivabies. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

vi) Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities
Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vii} Going Concern assumption
The financial information of the company has been prepared on a going concern basis.
The company has prepared its budgets / cash flow forecasts, which involves judgement and estimation
around the sources of funds to meet the financial obligations and cash flow requirements. Also refer
note 41.

viii) Leasing arrangements :: Determination of discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

E.

D

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.c., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 38.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4ll amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives {determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for vse/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Management estimate of |Useful life as per Schedule 11
Useful Life to the Companies Act, 2013
Building 15-60 years 60 years
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 years 10 years
Vehicles 8 years 8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years 5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives.

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years)., The amortization period and
the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

3) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i.  Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price,

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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it. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
asat FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

~ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.
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Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | €ffective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss,

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents

at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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. Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

v. Qffsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible debentures
denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the number
of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently,

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in
the cost of an asset). [n case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and
no gain or loss is recognised.

vi. Interest fiee loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
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amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been
treated as other equity,

Non-convertible debentures

The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
liability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has
been separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component has been fair
valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet date.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross cairying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

. Concessional overdraft facility

The Company has availed overdraft facility from banks at an interest rate lower than the market rate,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposit with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market rate is treated as deemed equity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

[mpairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

5)

every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment Ioss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO™)
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8)

9)

method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii} the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
cutrency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

(a} Shori-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
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gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be patd in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

(c)

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the petiod in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the peried in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

\
r
Gurugram
1] oA, T
—

+




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue,

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is eatlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which
is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been
provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space rental

Space rental income comprise amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The
income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding collection of consideration.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated firture cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

« the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
+ the amortised cost of the financial liability,

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
tncome is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis,

14} Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deterred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for

» temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:
- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
(ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

« temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

+ taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may eamns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s other compenents and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the
operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information
reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted  for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive.
17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

18) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

SR : ‘ @{5



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets
and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

19) Measurement of earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items
and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has clected to present earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the
measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense,
exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

21) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind
AS 116 “Leases™ which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind
AS 116 sets out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
for both lessors and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is
or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and
applies the lease accounting model only to lease components,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed” payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable, ‘In-
substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance,
are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable,

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and
any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases
which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered
to be an “in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability.
Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattemn reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment
in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease. =




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

22) Investment property

23)

Recognition and measurement

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost,
including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Investment property is derecognized either when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes a period of 60 years as
representing the best estimate of the period over which investment property (which is quite similar) is
expected to be used. Accordingly, the Group depreciates investment property over a period of 60 years
on a straight-line basis.

Reclassification fromAo investment property

Transfers to (or from) investment property are made only when there is a change in use. Transfers
between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying
amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposes.

Fair value disclosure

The fair values of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values is determined by an
independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for ali known losses and
liabilities.
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SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS10LGIZ005PTC045397

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise siated)

%  Noun-current financial assets - Other financlal assets As at As ot
{Linsecured considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bank deposits {duc to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)* # 112.87 11.46
Security deposits 2236 21.87

13523 33.33
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR. 1.23 (31 March 2024 - 0.08)
# includes dep under lien ting to INR 111.64 (31 March 2024 - 11.38)
& Income tax For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A: The major ts of i tax exp are
Recognised in profit or loss
Current tax -
Deferred tax -
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 025 31 March 2024
Recognlsed in other comprehensive income
Income tax on other comprehensive income =
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accoundng profit multiplied by Company's Jomeste tax rate)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Pe 2 A Per g Amount
Loss before tax (50.83) (179.24)
Tax using the Company’s domeslic tax rate 25.17% (12.79) 25.17% (4511
Tax effect of;
Mon recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differsnces 24.73% (12.57) -27.28% 43.90
Meo-deductible expenses - - 0.36% {064}
Expiry of carry forward business losses -58.51% 29.74 - -
Others §.62% (4.38) 1.76% {3.15)
Effective tax rate E = = =
C. Deferred tax assets / liabilides
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 831.72 860,54
Provision for ernplovee benefits 241 1.57
Loss allowance for doubifl debts 609 4,20
Security deposits 20.08 -
Lease lishilities 19.92 2.49
#86.22 868.80
Deferred tax lisbilities
Property, plant and cquipment and other intangible assers {1830.000 (21947}
Right-of-usc asset (94.95) {25.48)
Trade payables - {001}
{274.95) {244.96)
WNet deferred fax asset® 611.27 623.84

Net deferred tax asset recognised™

*The Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carmy forward business 1osses as per Income Tax Acl, 1961, [n view of absence of reasonable certainty of sufficient future

taxable profits, deferred tax assels has been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities only.




SAMBI Hotels (Abmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS10LGI2005PTCO45397

Notes to the Rnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A amourits in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stared)

D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2025

Balance as at Movement during Balance as at
Particulars 01 April 2024 2023-24 31 March 2025
Property, plant and equip Other intangible assels and investment Property {219.47) 39.47 (130.00)
Right-of-use asset (25.48) (69.47) {94.95)
Sceurity deposils - 20.08 20.08
Unahbsorbed business lesses and depreciation £60.54 (22.82) 817.72
Lease labilities 2.49 17.43 19,92
Trade payables 0.01) Q.01 -
Loss allowance for trade receivabies 420 1.39 6.09
Provision for employes benefits 1.57 0.84 241
Total 623.84 (12.57) 611.27
31 March 2024
Balance as at Movement during Balance as at
Particulars H April 2023 2022-23 31 March 2024
Property, plant and equig Diher intangible assets and Investment Property (224.71 il (219.47)
Right-of-use asset {26.02) 0.54 {25.48)
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 658.58 201.96 860.54
Leasc receivable (2.35) 2.35 -
Lease liabilities 244 0.05 249
Trade payables (1.00) 0.99 {0.01)
Disallowance u/s 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 for accrued inlerest 161.44 (161.44) -
Loss allowance for trade receivables 350 0.40 4.20
Provision for cmployce benefits 282 (1.25) 1.57
Taotal 57404 48.90 52384
E. Tax Losses carrbed forward
Tax losses for which no deferred ax asser was recognised with expiry date as follows
As At
31 March 2025
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 8725 2025-26
Business loss 3879 2026-27
Business loss 132 2027-23
Busincss loss 232,96 202829
Business loss 259.57 2029-30
Business loss 655.57 2031-32
Unsebsorbed depreciation 2053103 Never Expire
As at
31 March 2024
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 118.17 2024-25
Business loss 87.25 2025-26
Business loss 8T 2026-27
Business loss 1.32 2027.23
Business loss 23296 2028-29
Business loss 259.57 202920
Busingss loss 658.83 2031-32
Unabseched depreciarion 202228 Newver Expire
Other tax assets As at As at

Tax deducted at source

31 March 2025

21.30

31 March 2024

54.78

2030

54.78




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
CIN USS10LGIZ005PTCO45297

MNotes o the finamcia] statemwnts for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Alf amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stafed)

Other nom-carrent assels As at Asg at
Unsecured considered good) 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital advances 265 434
Prepaid expenses .24 0.55
1.89 4.81
Imventories As at As at
{fvalued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Beverages 4.53 6.62
4.53 .62
Current linancial assets - Trade receivables As at As at
(Unsecured) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables
- Considersd good 92.26 119.32
- Considersd impaired 74 6.03
Unbilled revenue *
- Considered good 11.06 21.52
112.56 14687
Less: Loss allowance (24.21) (16.70)
88.33 130,17
* Met of advances from customers of INR 4.66 (31 March 2024 - INR 54.74)
a) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowance related to rade receivables are disclosed i note 38,
b) Far receivables secured against bomowings, refer note 16
<) Refer note 37 for duss from related parties.
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Tetal
Particalars Unbilled Revenug Less tham 6 months | 6 months -1 year | L-2years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(i} Undispured Trade receivabies - considered good 13.06 62.18 13.00 9.42 6.06 1.60 105.32
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credir impaired - - - - 295 4.29 T24
Total 13.86 6118 13.04 942 4.01 5.89 11256
As ut 31 March 2024
Outstanding fer following pertods from date of transaction
Reven Total
Particulars Unbilled e Less than é months | 6 months- 1 year | | -2 years 2 -3 years | More then 3 years
(i1 Undisg 1 Trade receivables — idered good 21.52 100,39 2.01 7.35 0.74 1.33 140,84
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - .13 326 - 2.64 603
Total 21.82 14039 9.4 1111 .74 197 146,87

The Company does nat have any dispted trade receivables as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN US5101GJ2005PTC045397

Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(A4l amowmrs in Rupees Miffion, unless otherwise stated)

11 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 16.40 10.05
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months) * 10.04 .33
Cash on hand 0.40 0.26
26.84 20.14
* including interest acerued on fixed deposits amounting to INR 9.04 (31 March 2024 - INR 0.06)
I1a  Current financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bank deposits (original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) # 50.49 93.14
50.49 93.14
# includes intercst accrucd on fixed deposits amounting to INR 0.50 (31 March 2024 - INR. 0.47)

12 Cuorrent financtal assets - Ocher financial assets As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) M March 2025 31 March 2024
Security deposits - 041
Other reccivables 1.11 0.25

1.11 0.66

13 Other current assets As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Staff advance 0.34 0.36
Advance to suppliers 1.70 5.34
Balance with statutory authorities 9.02 4.94
Prepaid expenses# 15.78 16.60

26.84 27.24

# includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 0,34 (31 March 2024 - INR 0.30)



SAMHI Hatels (ARmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS101GIZM0SPTCO45397

Notes 40 dhe financisl stacerments For the vear caded 31 March 2625
[dfi amounts in Rupecs Million. wnless otherwise stated)

14 Equity share capital As Asat
3t March 2425 31 Mareh 224
Mumber #f shares Amaunt Mumber of shareg Ampant
Avthorised share capitel
Clase A equity shares of IMR. 10 each 2295900 2300 1299900 2300
Class B cquity shares of INR 10 cach ¥ 100 - 100 -
0.001% Compolkon! itle pref: shares of IMR 10 cach £3,00,000 a3.00 63,00,000 63,00
#6.00.000 26,00 B6,00,000 B6.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paéd wp
Class A equity shares of IR, 10 cch 20,654,936 2165 21,64.936 2165
Class B eqqiry shares of INR 10 @ch # 10 . o 5
0.001% Compulsorik ibke p shares of MR 19} each * - - - .
AN R 2165 21.64,946 21.65
* These preference shares have been classified a5 compound financial and disclosed under the head ‘Other squiny’, Refer noie 15,
# Amount 1 elow rounding off threshold adopeed by the Company.
aj Reconciliation of equity shares ootstanding at the beginning and at the end af year
For the year ended For the vear cuded
31 March 2025 A1 March 1924
Number of shares Argaot  Numbser of shares Amounrt
Claes A cuily sharcs
At the begmning of the year 2).64.936 2165 21.64.936 21,65
At the end ol the year 2164935 2183 21,654,936 2165
Class B cquity sharcs
Al the beginning of ibe year § 10 = | [{]
At the end of the year @ 10 - 10 -
0.001% Compusoril ible p shares
At the beginning of the year 63,00,000 63.00 61,00,000 63.00
At the end of the yeark 63.00.000 53.00 63.00.000 §3.00
# Amount is below munding off threshold adopted by the Company.
b) Shaves beld by Holding Company
Ay at As sl
31 March 2415 31 Murch 2024
Number Ampunt Number Amownt
Chass A equlty shares
Holding Company - SAMH] Heaels Limited 21,64,936 2165 21.64,936 21.6%
Clags B equity shares
Holding, Company - SAMHL Hoiels Lirmited 2 10 - 1o
+.0¥L % Compuolsers p shases
Holding Company - SAMHI Hotels Limited 63,00,000 £300 63,00,000 6300
# Amount is below rounding off theeshakd adopted bry the Company.
&) Shares eestirved fpr isswe wader comract
Number Amount Numibyer Ampnat
0.001% Compulseril e sharess £3.00,000 63.00 6,00.000 63.00
# Refer kerms of issue In note (1) below.
) Skavcholders hokding more tham 5% of ihe shares Number % ol helding Number % of holding
Chass & equity shares
SAMHI Hotels Linmited, the Holding Company * 2164926 100% 21,64,93 100%%
Class B cquity shares
SAMHI Hoels Limied 1] 1% L] 1007
0.081% Ci P ibde prefs "
SAMHI Hoteld Limited 63,00,000 L) 63,00,000 1007%
* Mr. Ashish Jakhamwsla holds | equity share as a nominee Sharehokder,
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharsholders! bers and other declarations received rom sharzhol garding beneficial interest. the above sharsholding wp buth lepal and beneficial ownership of shares,




SAMHI Hotels (A bmedabad) Private Lisited
CIN USSINGIIOSSPTCRISIS7
Notes 1o the finnacial statemments for 1he vear ended 31 March 2025

(Al amoums in Rupees Miffion, vnless otherwise siatgd)

<} Rights, preferences and restriciions antached bo squity shares

The Company has two classes oFequity shares having per vahie of INR 10 por shars viz Class A and Class B

Class A equity share shall mean the equity share of the company which shall entifle e holders thereof to normal dividend rights and one vote per such Class A equity share and such ouher rights, p and privileges as provided in
umn ang articles of iation of th v

Class B equiry share shall mean the equity shares of the company having superior voring rights In respect of the reserved maners such that Chiss B shareholders shall be entitied to thres (3} tmez of the voting rights hed by Class A

shareholders and sitch other rights, preferences, and privileges as provided In dum and arfiches of. {anian of the

In the svent of liquidarion of the Company, the holder of equiry shares will e entiled to receive remaining essets of the Company, after disoibution of afl profereitial amoumis. The dismribution will be in proportion to the mumber of equity
sheares held by the shereholders.

) Rights, terms, pref and i hed to preference shares

Compulsari i e shares (COPS) shall rank pari passu with the equity shares of the company in respect of sny dividend payable to holders of equity shares aficr the CCPS conpon i paid to holders, The CCPS shall bear a
fived dividend @ 0.001% p.a. payablz on each quaner subjact w applicable withholding tox

Each CCPS shall be converted inte lower of @ one (1) Class A equiry share of company or such number of Class A equity shancs as d incd in dance with provisions of sk s ST
equity share of company ar earlest of -

(i} the daw CCPS holders holding ax least 90%, of the then outstand g CCPS elect to convert the CCPS,

i) the occurrence of liquidity event; and

(i) the expiration dase, which i 20 years from the dae of issue of CCPS

Upen conversion, Class A equity shares of dw company, issued 1o CCPS holders, shall be free from all encumbrance, Fully paid-vp, keving full varing rights and shall renk pari passu in every respect with then puistanding Closs A equity
shares of the company.
The CCPS are non-marketable and the company does oot invend 1o, and shall not list CCPS on amy recagnised stock exchange in or cutside India, as per shareholder’s agresment.

The CCPS shall convert s Class A

&) Mo shares bave boen allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or shargs bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date
W) Dotails of shares hedd by pramaters

As at 31 March 2025

Ne. of shores at (ke No. of shares at the

Type of cquity share Promoter Name beginning of the Change during the year end of the year = % of Total Skares % chage doring the year
year *
Class A equiry sharss 5AMHI Hotels Limited 2164936 - 21,64,936 99.9995% Mo change
Class B equiry sharcs 5AMHI Hotels Limied 10 - U] 0.0005% Mo change
Compulsorly ible p shares SAMHI Hotels Limied 53,00,000 = 63,00,000 100.0000% Mo chenge
4498 . £4,64.946
Ac st 31 March 234
No. of shares M the No. of sh {the
Type of cquity shares Promoter Name beginning of the Change during he year  ° :u.d n:':::;r N %% ol Total Shares %a change during the year
year *
Clags A equity sherms SAMHI Hawels Limited 21,564,956 - 21,64,936 99.9995% No change
Closs B equiry shares SAMHI Howls Limited 10 - [i1] 0.0005% No change
Ci iy ible p shares EAMH!? Hotels Limited 63,00, 000 - £3,00,000 1000000 Np change
84,64,946 - 464,06
* including beneficial ownership




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN U55101GJ2005PTC045397

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

15

Other equity

Equity component of interest free loans from Holding company
Equity component of Compound financial instrurnent
Securities premium

Retained camings

Equity component of concessional overdraft faclilicy

a) Equity component of interest free loans from Holding company
Balance at the beginning of the year

Loan from Holding Company received - recognised directly in other equity
Loan repaid to Holding Company - recognised directly in other equity
Balance at the end of the year

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
392.69 392.69

63.00 63.00
1,397.55 1,397.55
(3,141.92) (3,090.87)
4.90 4.90
{1,283.78) (1,232.73)
392.69 392.69
- (82,12}

- 82,12

392,69 392,69

This represents the interest free loans received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the holding company which are repayable at the option of the Company (considered

as perpetual debi).

b) Equity component of Compound financial instrument
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

This represents the equity component of compound financial instruments (0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each).

) Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

d) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Loss for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained eamings represent the amount of accumulated profits/(losses) of the Company.

e} Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Balance at the beginning of the year
Remeasurements of defined benefit Liability / asset
Transferred to retained eamings

Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses.
) Equity component of concessional overdraft faclility

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

63.00 63.00
63.00 63.00
1,397.55 1,397.55
1,397.55 1,397.55
(3,090.87) 291141
(50.83) 179.24)
(0.22) (0.22)
(3,141.92) 3,090.87
(0.22) {0.22)
022 0.22
4.90 4.90
4.90 4.90

This represents the impact of overdraft facility availed by the Company at an interest rate lower than the market interest rate.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad} Private Limited

CIN U55101GJ2005PTC045397

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

16 Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings

a) From Financfal instimtion (secured)
Term loans
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21)

b} Non-Convertible Debentures (secured)
31 March 2025: Nil; 31 March 2024: 3,800, 10.45% non-convertible debentures of
INR 1,000,000 each
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21)

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in note 38.

As at As at
3t March 2028 31 March 2024

3,702,19 :
(190.50) :
3,511.69 ”
- 3,725.92
- (3,725.92)
3,511.69 5
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SAMHI Haotels { Ahmgdabad) Private Linnited
CIN USS101GI2005PTCO45397

Notes te the financlal staterments for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Aff amounts in Rupeas Million, unless oiherwise siated)

17 Noocurrent Boanclal KabMfities - Lease Enbiltes

18

20

2

Leasc liabilities (refer nole 43}
Non-carrest financial linbllithes - Oftver finamcial labilities
{Unsecured . unlass otherwise stated)

Security deposits

Nap current Pravisions
Provision foe eployes benefits

Gratuily {refer pote 42)
Compensated absences (refer note 42)

Other mon-current lkabilites

Income received in advance

Advance reatal

Current Mnancial llabilities - Berrowings

a) From Financis! institution (secured)
Curent matwities of long term borrowings

b) Neg-convertible debentures (sernred)
Current maturili¢s of long term borrowings

o[ free boap repay o o 14 d)
From Holding Corpany (refer noie 37)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
FL.74 9,10
.74 2.10
1.95 1.75
1,95 17§
1.40 141
211 1.28
.51 .69
s —_—
4129 50.49
0.68 0405
4797 54.54
194.50 =
1%0.50 -
- 3,725.92
- 3,125.92
§8.50 -
3850 -
270.08 3,725.02




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Privaie Linited
CIN USS101GI2005PTCO45597

Notas 1o the financial stakermends Tor the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts in Rupees Million, unfess otherwise stated)

22 Curreml financial liabilities - Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Trade payables
- 1edal outsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerpriscs
(MSME) 12.41 136
- lowal sutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small cnterprises 150.32 148.35
161,73 15571
u) Refer note 40 for Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).
b) Refer note 37 for ducs to related parties.
¢} The Company's exposure 1o currency and liquidity risks related 1o irade payables is disclosed note 38,
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
- Accrued 0 for Z from date of transaction Total
Particulars Less tham | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - 12.26 0.15 & - 1241
(i) Qthers A6.83 112.90 01l 0.49 - 150.32
Total 36.83 125.16 0.26 .49 - 162.73
As gt M March 2024
O timp for Tollowing perdods from date of transaciion
A d = Total
Particulars cormed exp Less than 1 year 1.2 years 23 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - 7.25 0.08 - 0.03 1.36
Ifiil Cthers 40.62 @1.03 9,32 502 0.96 148.35
[Total 40.62 98.28 9.50 5.92 0.99 155,71
The Company docs nol have any dispuled dues which are payable as a1 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
23 Current financial Habilities - Lease liabllities
Lease liabilites (refer nolz 43) T4 019
141 0.79
24 Current foascial linbikities - Others
Employee related payables 487 1.99
Payable for capilal asscls 1085 4.4
Securily deposits received 7.26 39.86
21.98 45,39
25 Other current Nabilities
Advance from custoners 495 789
Advance rental 0.24 298
Statutory dues payable 2260 1283
Income received in advance 320 120
30.99 32.90
26 Current provislons
Pravision for employee benefis
Gramwily (refer note 42} 078 0.95
Compensated absences (refer note 423 1.26 0.8%
2.04 1.80




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN US5101GJ 2005P TCO45397

Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(4 amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

27 Revenoe from operations

Sale of services
- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenue
- Recraation and other services

Other operating revenues
- Property Management and space rental

Disaggregation ol revenue information

a) Revenue based on product and services
-Revenue from goods and services iransferred 1o customers at a point of time
-Revenue from goods and services ransferred 1o customers over tims

b) Revenue based on produet and services
~Contracted price revenuef revenue from contract with customers

For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
905.84 T47.43
36772 397.83
49,46 55.17
1323.05 1.200.43
38.36 83.35
3836 88.15
1361.41 1,288.78
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,361.41 1,.238.73
1,361.41 1,288.78
1,361.41 1,288.78
13614 1,288.78

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance comsideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered.
Advance col'lectlon is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards roowms/

Ee is recogmsed onee the perfonnance obligation is met i.e. on room sy sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services. Excess of revenue over
invoicing is moorded ag unbilled X recognised in the of profit and loss is same as the contracted price.
Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 495 .89
Trade receivables 8835 130,17

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are generally materialised as revenue and rade receivables are converted into cash within the same

operating cycle.

The amount of revenue JNE. 7.33 (3| March 2024 B 6.79) recognised in the reporting period was included in advance from customer balance ar the beginning of the period.

28 Other income

| i from financial assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits

Amortisation of income received in advance
Provision no longer required written back

Interest on income tax refund

Lease income

Miscellaneous Income

Rental income

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

29 Cost of materials consumed

Consumption of Food and beverages
Inveniory at the baginning of the year
Add: purchases made during the yezr
Inventary at the end of the year

30  Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution 1o provident and other funds (refer nore 423}
Compensated absences (refer note 42)

Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6.13 543
320 3.4
134 -
3.55 a9
- 0.25
1.61 -
1.63 216
217 0.20
19.13 1L44
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6.62 631
96.21 9085
{4.53) {6.62)
93.30 .54
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
128,48 10955
g4 768
187 ile
16.99 14.03
155.48 134.82




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS101GI2005PTC045397
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

31

32

33

Finance cosis

Interest expense on {inancial liabilities carried at amortised cost

- On security deposit received
- Loan from bank and financial institution
- Non-convertible debentures

- Loan from related party
- Others

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues

Interest on lease liabilities
Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Other expenses

Repair and maintenznce
- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Advertisement and business promotion

Commission
Communication

Consumption of stores and supplies

Contractual labour

General administration expenses

Hotel running expenses
Insurance

Legal and professional charges (refer note 37)
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Management and incentive fees

Payment to auditors (refer below)

Power, fuel and water

Loss allowance for trade receivables

Rates and taxes

Rent expenses

Training expenses
Travelling expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors comprises (net of tax)

As auditor
(i) Statutory audit

(ii} Reimbursernent of expenses

(iii} Other services

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

249 3.01
153.58 185.40
234.78 261.85
- 9.05
. 3.92
E 2.13
6.23 1.05
65.48 12.40
462.56 482.81
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

135.11 141.69
0.77 3.08
5.99 2.18
1.l6 244

143.03 149.39

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7.40 10.89
17.83 15.75
8.38 7.85
50.59 40.12
43.99 39.08
1.61 1.43
39.22 4543
40.5] 39.77
9.04 720
7.96 9.26
3.55 2.97

117.65 191.27

EX | 1.53
81.52 7446
1.35 140
62.60 57.31
7.51 1.63
28.59 25.15
0.06 8.51
298 245
27.30 26.81
9.01 2.63

57206 612.90
1.20 1.20
0.10 0.10
0.05 0.10
1.35 1.40




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN Us5101GJ2005PTC045397

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
(Al amounrs in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

34

35

Loss per share (EPS) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net loss attributable to equity sharcholders (50.83) (179.24)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 21,64,946 21,64,946
Weighted average number of equity shares for ealculation of diluted EPS 21,64,946 21,64.946
Nomina! value of equity sharc {INR} 10 ]
Basic caming per share {INR) (23.48) (82.79)
Diluted caming per share (INR) * (23.48) (82.7%)

* The outstanding potential equity sharcs have an anti-dilutive cffect on EPS. Hence, the same have not been considered for calculation of Diluted earnings per share.

Contingent liabilities and commitments
{to the exient not provided for)

As at As at

Commitments 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 24.58
and others, and not provided for

Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Total demand | Amount paid Total demand Amount paid under
under protest protest

Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 [refer note (iii) below] 26.50 - 26.50

Total 26.50 - 26.50 =

(i) In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement ¢larified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measurc obligations under the

(i)

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Aet, 1952, The Company has been legally advised that there are inierpretative challenges on the application
of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. For the period 1 March 2019 to 31 March 2019, the
Company has made a provision for provident fund contribution in the books of accounts atnounting to INR 0.27,

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company received notice under section 148A of the Income-tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2018-19 for initiating

re-assessment proceedings against the Company. The reason for rcassessment is repayment of loan to holding company. The management has filed its response
against the notices, citing factual inaccuracies in the notices, The management believes that bascd on the facts of the casce and cousidering that the Company had

significant unabsorbed depreciation in the respective years, no liability is likely to devolve on the Company.

(iii) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has received notice from Commissioner (Appeals-I), Central Tax against adjudicating order passed by

Additional Commissioner of Central tax, Rangareddy CGST commissionerate dated [7 June 2022 on account of penalty of INR 26.50 to be Jevied on account of
delay in deposit of GST for the period April 2020 to Decernber 2020 (except July 2020). Further during year ended 31st March 2024, the Company has received the
final order confirming the said penalty. Management is in the process of filing appeal with the Telangana Bench of Appellate Tribunal.

(iv) During the year cnded 31 March 2023, the Company has received a notice under section 263 of Income Tax Act, 1961 in relation to revision of asscssment order

passed w's 143(3) for AY 2018-19 o account of non deduction of TDS on certain forcign payments. Further during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has
received the unfavourable order wherein business loss of INR 33.15 has been reversed from total loss claimed for such previous year. Furtber during the year ended
31 March 2025, the department has remanded back the case for fresh reasscssment which is pending for disposal.

-

& Co

o Gurug(rfm r_;

Pty

+



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in Rupees Million, unlesy otherwise stated)

36  Operating Segments

The Holding Company’s Chief Execulive Officer has been idenlified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM?, since he is responsible for all major decisions w.r.t. the preparation and
ion of busi pian, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has ined the Company’s perd: e from product and
geographic perspective and has identified a single busi z i.e. "Developing 2nd unning of hotels™, hence no specific disclosures have been made,

2) [nformation about producis and services
Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and nunning of hotels™, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

b} Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services io customers in India. Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India.

<} Information aboul major customers {from external customers)
The Company does nol derive revenue fom one customer which would amount 10 L0 per cent or more of the Company™s revenus,

37 Related party disclosures
a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:
Nature of relationship Name of the related party
Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited
b} Other refated parties with whom iransactions have taken place:

Manare of relationship Name of the related parity
Fellow subsidiary CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Argon Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI I'V Business Hotels Privale Limited
Duet India Hotels {Chennai) Private Limited
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited

Duet India Hotels {Pune) Private Limited

Duet India Hotels (Jaipur) Private Limited

Duet india Hotels (Hyderabad) Private Limited
Duet India Hotels {Ahredabad) Private Lindted

<) Related party tr tioms during the year:

Pariiculars Holding Company Fellow Subsidlaries
31 March 1025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bepayment of loan from holding pany (incloding interest}
SAMHI Hotels Limited - 32227 - ¥
Unsecured loan taken
SAMHI Holels Limited - 25.50 = -
Cwrrent Rnancial liabilities - Borrowings
Tnierest free unsecured loan from Holding Company received
SAMHI Hotels Limited 21000 - * S
Interest free unsecured loan from Holding Company repaid
SAMHI Hotels Limited 121.50 - - =
Tnterest exp on ed lan
3AMH] Hotels Limited - .05 - A
Loan from Holding Company received - recogmised directly in equity i
SAMHI Hotels Limited . §2.12 - -
Loan from Holding Company repaid - recopnised divectly in equity comp
5AMHI Hotels Limited - 3212 - .




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS101GI2005PTC045397

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
A i amonnts in Rupess Million, tinless otherwise siated)

Reimbursement of expenses (net)

SAMHI Hotels Limited

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

5.54

521

Argon Hotels Private Limiled

3.68

437

SAMHI JV Business Huotels Private Limited

328

Dusgt India Hotels (Pune) Private Limited

0.99

Duel Indiz Hotels {Jaipur) Private Limied

0.55

Duet India Hotels {Hyderabad) Privale Limited

4.18

Duet lndia Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

0.63

Duet India Holels (Chennai) Privale Limiled

0.51

capitalised in CWIP)

Legsl and professional charges (cost allocation from holding pany imcl

SAMHI Hotels Limited

93.54

157.27

d} Refsted party bat -

ding at year end;

Particulars

Fellow

T

Holding C

pamy

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 March 2025

31 March 2024

Equity component of interest {ree loans

SAMHI Hotels Limited

352,69

392.69

Equity component of 0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares
(including securities premi

SAMHI Holels Limited

1,260.00

1.260.00

I overdraft facility

“Equlty component of ]

SAMHI Hotels Limited

4.80

Trade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

62.99

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited

Payable for capital assets

SAMHI Hotels Limited

7.63

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

CASPIA Hotels Privale Limited

0.03

Argon Hotels Private Limited

0.15

0.20

Duet [ndia Hotels (Chennai) Private Limited

0.17

SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

0.28

0.10

Current fi {al labilities - Barrowings

Interest free unsecared Loan from holding pany

SAMHI Hote!s Limited

38.50

Aiver bl

The wransactions with related panties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length ions. O

cash,

at the year-end are unsecursd and settlement ocours in

For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating 1o amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken

at each reporting period.

- The holding company has provided corporate

on behalfof the company in respect of loans oblained from debenture holders/financial institution. (refer pate 16}

- The holding company has provided corporate guarantes 1o Starwood Hotels and Resorts India Private Limited {operator of the company} pursuant to the operating services agreement entered

by the Company.

- SAMHI Holels (Gurgaon) Private Limited has provided bank guaramtee to Vistra [TCL India) Limited of [NR $0 against nen-convertible def

Company.

fe.

m loan

brained by the




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

CIN USS101GIZO05PTCO4%397

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
(Al amounis im Rupees Milfion, unless stherwise stated)

38  Financial imstruments - Fair valoes and risk management
A) Finamcisl instruments by category aad falr value

The below table izes the judg: and esti made in d ining the fair values of the financial instruments thet are (a) recognised and meagured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost
and for which Eair valyes are disclosed in the financial To provide an indication about the reliabiliry of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial insiruments
into the three levels prescribed under the ing standargd
31 Mareh 2025
) Fair Value Through | Fair Value Through Other
Particulars
HI'I':::::': Profit and Loss Comprehensive Income Amortised Cost
ol (FYTPL) (FYTOC])
Finaaclal assets
Non-turrent
Other financial assets - - 135.23
Current
Trade receivables - - 2835
Cash and cash equivalents - - 26.84
Orher bark balances - - 5049
Other financial assats - - .11
Total financial asceis - - 202
Financial llabilidies
Non-current
Bormowings 2 - - 1.511.6%
Lease liabilities - 7174
Orther financial liabilities - - 1.95
Current
Bormmowings 2z - - 279.00
Leage lishilities B = 741
Trade pavables - - 161.12
Other financial liabilities - - 22.98
Total financlal liabHities - - 4.055.39
31 March 2024
Fair Value Through | Fair Yalue Through Other
Particulars
“I;::::::y Profit and Loss Compreheasive Incomne Amortised Cost
{F¥TPL} {FYTOCT)
Financial assets
Mom-currant
Other financial assets = - 33.33
Current
Trade receivables - - 13017
Cash and cash eauivalents = - 20.14
Other bank balances 93.14
Other Ninancial assets - .66
Tetal finnncial asseis = - 217.44
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Lease liabilities - 9.10
Oiber fivancial liabilivies % z 1,75
Current
Barrowings 2 - - 172592
Lease liabilities - - 0.79
Trade payables - - 155.71
Other £ ial liahilities - - 46.39
Total financial lislilities - - 193066

A} Financial instruments by calegory and [air value (continued)

The fair value of made receivables. cash and cash equivalents. other bank balances, other current financial assers, current borrowings, made payabley and pther current financial liabilities approximate ther
CAHTYINE amounts. due to their short-termm mature,

Interest Ries vn non-current borrowings (bomowings from bank and financial institutien) are equivalent 1o the market rare, Such burrowings ane conmacied at floating rates and rates are reser a1 shon intervals
Aceordingly, the camrying value of such bormowings approximates fair value,

Fair value of bank deposits {included in other non-current financial aysers) are equivalent tw their camying amount. a5 the interest rate on them is equivalent to market tate,

The Company hus not disclosed the Rir values of lease receivables (included in other nun-curment finsncial assers) beciuse their carmying Jmounts are 3 reaspnable approximation of fur vatuey,

The fair value measurement ol lease labilitics is nol required w be disclosed,

Fair valuation of non-current Rnancial assets and liabiliies has been diselosed 10 be same a5 carmying value as there is nu

difference berween camying value and Rair vaue
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Motes to the finansish statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amouniz in Rupees Million, unfess otherwise stated)

B) Measurement of 3k values

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. There has been oo transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Leval 3 for the year ended
31 March 2025 and 3| March 2024,

C) Financial risk management
Risk managenent ramework

The Company's activilies expose it o a variety of financial dsks: marker cisk (including foreign exchange risk and intetest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Holding Company’s Chief Fi ial Officer under the directions of the Board of Dv: impl firmncial nisk licies across the Company. The Company’s risk li

are established to identify and analyse the risks Faced by the Company, o set appropriate disk limits arel controls, ta manitor risks and adhersnce to limits in ordr to minimize the financial impact of such risks.

The risk 2 policies and are reviewsd reguiacly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financinl loss o the Company if a or party ko a financial instrument fatls to meer fis contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the
i credit risk exp . The Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongeing basis.

The Company policy is to place cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances with banks and il instint parties with good credit rating.

The Company has given security deposits to various statutory authorities and to vendors for securing services from them and renial deposits from employes dati The Company does oot expect any

default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

In respect of credit exp (fom wade ivables, the Company has established a credic policy under which sach new customer is analysed individually for credi hi before ing {nto conrracr,

Credit limits ace established for each reviewed regularly and amy sales excesding those limirs require approval from the appropriate authoriry.

In case of lease receivables, the Company holds certain amounts as collateral in the form of securiry deposic.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

e

The Comp blishes an all for impai that rep its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables, The uses a simp approach for the purpose of computation of
expected credlt Toss for trade receivables. In iori credit risk, are grouped ding to their credir characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal enrry, their
geographical location, indusiry and existence of previous rmanml difficulties, if any.

The Comy iders a financial asset 1 be in default when;

+ the debtor is unlikely to pay its eredit obligations to the Group in full; or
= the financial asset is more than two years past due.

The provision mairix used for determinéng loss allowance on rade receivables as at 3| March 2025 is 0-130 days: 3.31%, 180-365 days: 22.82%, 366-547 days: 49.05%, 548-729 days: T2.55%, >= T30 days:
100% (31 March 2024 : 0-180 davs: 3.19%. 150-365 davs: 18.27%. 366-547 davs: 41.22%. 548-729 davs: 63.17%. >= 730 days: 100%)

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2025 N March 2024

Opening balance 16,70 15.07
Changes in loss allowance 7.51 1.63
Clesing balance 24,21 16.70
The impai provisions for fi ial assets disclosed above are based on sssumptions about risk of defau!t and expected ioss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the i mpuu to the impairment calculation, based on the Company®s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimares at the end of each repocting peried.
ii. Liquidity visk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in ing the obligali iated with s fi | liabilities thar are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's

approach o managing liquidity is to ensuee, as far as poss:ble‘ that it will have sufficient liquidity o meet its liabiliries when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incurming
unacceptable losses or osking damage 1o Company's

Manag itors rolling ol the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivajmts on the basis of expected cash Nows to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
g takes into ideration the Companys debi refinancing plans, und committed b g facilities and covenant compliance.

Ultimate responslbﬂnty for liquidiry risk management rests with the bou:d ol directors, which has cstabln.hed an appropriale liquidity risk B fi k for the of the Company’s short-

term, medium term and long-term funding and liquidi B q .
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Exposure to liquldity risk

The following are the remaining contractual marurities of financial liabilities &t the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:

31 March 2025

Non - derivative (inancial liabiliies
Non-current borrowings

Non-current lease liabilities

Other non-current financial liabilities
Current borrowings

Currenr Jeass liabililies

Trade payables

Orther current financial liabilities

31 March 2024

Non-derivative financial Nabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Other non-current financial liabilities
Current borrowings

Current lease Liabilities

Trade payables

Other current financial liabilities

Also, refer note 41 for disclosures on Going Concem assumption

il Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, that will affect the Company's expense or the value of is holdings of £

Contractual cash Nows (INR)
Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 1-5 years More than
years
351169 3153025 25913 2ra -
7174 493 76 - 74l 2266 462.69
1.95 302 - 1.26 1.76 -
279.00 279.00 279.00 = - -
741 T4l T4l d - -
161.12 161.12 161.12 - -
2298 2298 2298 - = -
4,035.89 4,496.54 470.51 267,80 3,295.54 462.69
Cantractual cash Mows {INR}
Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More thao 5
years

910 29.99 - (.91 292 26.16
1.75 3402 - - 3.02 -
3712592 372592 3,725.92 - -

o9 083 0.83 -
155.71 156,12 156.12 - - -
46,39 446.39 46,39 - - -
1.939.66 3.9%62.27 3,919.26 .51 5.94 16.16

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, whils optimising the return.

Currency risk.

Currency risk for the Company is the risk thar the future cash outflows on of p
the jonal 'y and other foreign exchy
policies.

Exposure to currescy risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency tisk ar the snd of the reporting petiod are as follows:

31 March 2028

Financial liabilitfes
Trade payables

31 March 2024

Flaancial lkabilities
Trade payables

Currency

UsD

Curremcy

Usp

fees and other expenditure will fl
Compnay is exposed 1o 1he effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily dus 1o

h of ch

rate expostre arising from foreign ¥ on

Amount in fereigm
curreny (in millions)

0.26
Amount in foreign
curreny {in millions)

038

in foreign exch rates, The
e fl |

Ly

peniodic basis and follows appropriate risk management

INR in milioas

21.89

INR in millrons

3167
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9

Sensitivity analysls

A bl bl hening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee apainst foreign cumency at year end wauld have affected the of Nnancial i d inated in foreign currency and
affected equ.uy and profit or Ioss by the amounts shown below. This analysiz assumes that all other varniables, in particular inferest rates, remain constani and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit / {bass) Equity, net of tax
Increase f (decrease)
Elfect in INR Sir hii Weakening Strengthning ‘Weakenk
31 March 2025
1% movement
UsD 0.22 (0.22) 0.22 0.22)
0.22 (0.2 0.22 (0.2
Profit / (Boss) Equity, met of tax
ncrease / (decrease)
Effect In INR S thning Weakening Strengthning Weakening
3 March 2024
1% movement
uUsD 0.32 (0.32) .32 032}
032 03 0.32 (0.32)
Imterest rate risk

Interest tate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Aows of a financial instument will Auciate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company's exposure to the sk of changes in market
inrerest rares relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with flosting interest caes.

The Company evaluates the interest rates in the market an a regular basis to explore the option of refinancing of borrowings of the Company, Moreover, majority of the Company's borrowings are primarity
linked to floating inrerest rates, theceby resulting in adjustments of its borrowing costs in ling with the market nterest,

Exposare to intecest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial insmuments is as follows:

A tin INR
31 March 2028 31 March 2024

Fixed-rate instrumests

Financial assets - bank deposits 173.40 114.43
Financial lisbilities - Mon-convertible debentures {secured) - 3,725.92
173.40 384035
Variable-rate instruments
Finangial liabilities - Term loan from financial instiution 3,702.19 -
370219 -
Total 3.875.59 3,840.35

Fair value sensitivity analysis fer fixed-rate [astruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest cates at the reporting dates would have decreased peofit or Joss by INR 1.73 million (31 March 2024: INR 37.26).

Cashilew sensitivity analysls for variable-rate imstr

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporing dare would bave increased (decreased) equivy and profit ot logs by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, remain constant.

(Profit) / loss Equilty, met of tax
(imerease) decrense

100 bp inerease 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase LOD bp decrease
31 March 2025
Financial liabiliries 16.49 (16.49) 16.4% (1649
Cashflow semslivity (net} 16.49 {1649 16.4% (16.49)
31 March 2024
Financial lizbilities S : 3
Cashflow senstivity (net) & - = =
Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capite) base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1 sustain futare development of the business

The Board of directors of the hoiding compnay seeks to maintain a balance berwsen the higher retums that mighe be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a
soumd capital position,

The Company monitofs caphal using loan to value (LTV} method to ensore that the loan 16 value does not increase beyond 65% on any given reporting date at group level, As at 31 March 2025, the loan to
value is not exceeding 65% at group level.

The Company is not subject iy extermnully imposed capital requirements.

As a part of its capital manegement policy, the Company did not have any defaults in the repayment of [oans and interest, There have been no loan covenant defaylts,
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Notes to the Tlanacial statementy for the year emded 31 March 3025
AN amonnis in Ropees Miflion, unkass abermie siated)

A Disciosured vader Micre, Small and BMrdban Eoterprises Development Act, 1006 (MSMED) AF ar Asay
3 Morch H25 31 Mureh 2024

Dwex to micro and onall exlerprises
“The aemounts remaining snpeid 1o micro and small aikpriss o a1 the od of the yean

Principsl 1241 76
Toserest 0358 0ol
The fihe p icro and small ses bl Ui appoimed day during each g pAr ETRE] EET
The smount of inkerest paid under the a0y beyond the 2ppobied doy during the year X

“The amound of foterest due and payable far the pariod of delsy in making paymean (which have been paid bul beyond the sppointed day during the 032 [E]]
year) b without sdding the interest specificd wnder MSMED Act, 20

The amound of idarest sccrued and revmmining apaid at he end of each aceounting yesr, and 50 062

The amoun of fanher interest remaiming duc and payable aam in the succoeding wabrs, until wuch dite when the inlersst dass a5 above are
actually paid o the srall Trise for the purposs of dlall #ta ibl 1 der the At

The managemeni hay idenlified eenprise which have provided goods and wervives 10 the Comnany snd which quakfy under the defmbion of miloro and small cakaprises. 8 dofined under Mioro, Small and Modhm
Enverpriaes Development Acl, 2006 {MSMED), Accordingly. the distlosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as o 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 hes been made in the fmanclal $aements
based on inkormation recaiwed and avallable with the Compamy.

4i Golng cancern

The Company has meurted 2 nel loss of INR 5083 million during Lhe yer ondid 31 klarch 2025 snd a5 of that dave, the Company’s awrron liabilities execoded ifs curroni assels by INR 305 38 milllon. Further, the
Comgnry has sccamulated bosses of INR 3, (4152 million a5 at 31 March 2025 The current lishilivies include contractual cach oulflows of IR 470 51 mallion lucing fulure interest dwa
wilhin 12 moaths of tha mlsnes sheen due

Basod on flsture business projections, the Compeny eapects grovih in i oporasiond and impraved operiting perfirmunce in coming periods resaling in cohanced aash infiown Grom 15 opersting acilvitles. The Comnpany
bellawes such anicipated imemnally poncraied Gunds from operstions in faiwre 2hong with it liguidiny position as s 3| March 2025 and conain odiar cwmant asscts {financial and oo-financie!) as o 11 March 2025 will
enable it bo meol its fture known obllgations duz in Tt your, in the orlinary cowrse of business. Howowar, ifa Uguidity noed were t arise, te Company has aecms 10 roqulsile financial and aperaticnal suppon from
SAMHI Hoscls Limited (halding company), sshich should cnablc i 1o mea i ongolng aapital, operaving. and cther ligusdity requirements. boregver, the Company will conti dder varfous g apdions 10

liguldity and k ok L a5 BCCENATY
In wicw of Lhe above, the Managemen! and Board of Diretlors af the Company hive preparsd these financial stalemas on & poing concem basis.
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{AN amoumis in Ropaer Millior, unfers otherwite staed)

42 u. Deflned Contrilatisn plaas

The Company maks Thuti h incd s a specifiad age of emphoyee @larics, in respect of qualifying cmployess wowards Provident Fund, Labour WelGre Fund and Employess' Siaie lnsrance, which
are defied czninibution phani. The Company bas oo abilarlens o (him 19 make the specilicd conribuions. The contribaions are charged 10 profit or los as they accrue. The smounl recogmised 25 BN txponse.
towards contnibution 1o Provident Fund, Labour WelEre Fund and Employees” State lnsursnce fir tha yar aggrogaed 1o TVR § 14 (31 March 2074 - TNR 7.68)

b. Conmemsated shyences (01ber koog tevm cwmlovea banefin)

“The Principal Lomy waed in the b0 arc a5 givrm balow:
A st As
Particalary 31 March 025 3L March 2024
L e
Dlscounding raie B paH
Firlure aalary incrour 5.50 5.50

. Defined Benefr Plan

The Company hay o defined benefit gratwily plan. Every emplayea wh Jes complecd five yoars or mors of scrvice pols £ graluity on depanire a1 15 days salary (s dravwn salary) for esch complosed year of serviee of
pan eod in cnecss of & manths The schame ja non Tanded

Turcemenr rsk
Tha presml valuo of the defned beneln plan Liskiity {demominaied in Indisn Rupeed is calculated wsing a discourn mate which is determined by roferenes 10 markot yickds ol the and of 1he repoming. pericd on
v bonds.

Intcrest rave cisk
“The defined bencfii cbliparion ealenlaod wcs 3 disun Tale based on government bands. (7 bond yickts Rall, the dofinod bonefin obligation will tend 1o incraase

Loogevity risk

The present value of tha defined baneli pan Inbility is caleulsted by refrence 1o 1he bt cstimede of the mortality of plen panicinanis balh dering and alfler their amployment. An increase i the Bi cxpectancy of the
plan partlapanis will increase the plan's liability.

Salury risk

The iallouwing vbles sammurise the compenents of ney benafly £xpense recognised in profit o 1oss and amounts recogmised in the Balapee Sheer for the said plan:

2} Erpenses recogniacd im the Socemenl of profie and ks For e yrar anded For the year andal
34 Murch THi% M March J034

Particulury
Current service com 039 042
Inloresl co G 0.16
Total cxprmer recagubied in the Statement ol profit sod Less 56 058
L] gnized directly o sther income

For the year andad Far the year endrd
Parmiculery 31 March H2S A1 Mareh 2624

Met actoarisl {gain)itoas rocogmized in the yar
- changes in dermographic assumptlons. -
= chamges in fimancial assumplions 003

= changes in ceperiones adjpgtments e [[r]
Armauar recoguized in othicr rooprrbesaive Income 0 i
<) Chaage do preseal vabat of basallr obligation

Far tive year ended For the year ¢oded
Farticalary 31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Presom value of oiligation as at the boginning af te o 2316 215
Current serviee cosl L) 042
Interost el a1 i 1§
Acwril basi{gain) ax: 21
Benchis paid 10.96) 0 68
Presemt vakpr of obl|galion 2 21 the cod of' the ymr FXT] L




SAMHI Hotals [Abgedaboad) Privare Limired
CIN USSLH GBS FT O 5397
Marts tw the Muanclal sulemenrs for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2015
fA awmounte in Rupess Milion, i auerwise Haked)
#) Aweslntz to bt recognlzed in Balance sheet

Agul Asar
Farticwan 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Frosen value of the defined hanefiv obligation s the and of i o 218 116
Fair value of plan assers at the end of e your - =
Net lablity recognizad bm the Balance Sheet 1208 e 5]T)
N L, 140 L4l
Current 18 L]
£) Tha Priocipal chond wied bn ik tha granity bemefid are 2 given below

Asat Asat
Particulars I Murch 2925 31 Murch 29624

% %

Discounting rata pa. (i E49 FAH
Salary growih raee pa. (i) 550 550

(i The drseount raic is pencrally bescd upon the marke yields aviitable on Governmens bonds at e sccounting date with 3 term 1hay matchas 1has of the liabiities.
{in) The sabary growth b fahet sccoont of inflation, seniority, promotion and shor rolewant Bevors on long 1o batis

Asat Anat
Demegraphic assumptions: 30 March 1825 31 March 2024
Retirement Age fycarsh L %
Mortaliny Table JALM (2012.2014) T (20 12-200 25 uhiioae

vitamaic itk b
Withdrawal Rase L k)
Ages
Up 1o 30 Yeary bl hJ
From 31 w 44 yaars T0 o
Above 44 years 0 O
i) The Company's boat agiimano of expense for the nexl year is TNE 0 54 (31 March 2074 . TR 0 54)
i) Semskctriry austysis
Reasanably poesdblo changes # the neporting date 10 one of the rlevan act arfal v, hedding other constant, would have alfeeted the definad benefic
abligaian by the amownts shown below.
31 March HI5 I Mareh 2034
Imcremse * Decrease * Tnereane * Deovrax *

Diiscoumy e (5% movement) 002 04z 102y a.01
Fudure salary prawdl {0, 5% movemon} o0 042 o2 001
AMhough the anatysis doa o 1ake account of the Rl distribution of zash fows expacted under tha plan, it does provide 26 spprocimation of b Mivhy of he
* Posilive amosni rpresents iRcroase in privision
* Neguihvt amount Teprescnis decrense in provision
@) Marsrity profile ol deflocd bemaflt abligutian

An st Ad
Yoar 3L March 125 31 March 2024
Erin | yoar [} 0
1102 yar 056 LIV
2103 your 03 03l
Jnod yur 017 olr
440 5 year 1. 009
3106 pear 2] 04

4 year onvards 01 [Nk
21 s

K The weighind-averags durstion of e dofimed benell obligation as & 31 March 2025 is | 46 yoars (3] March 2024; 145 youry)
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Meiea to 1he Ananchal satements far the yeur ended 31 March 1825
FAN amowmit in Rupers Mitlion, wndess othernise stated)

43 Lease diselonures

Operating Lesses
Dwuring tho comrent yoar,, the e of the original lease agreomen wore modified and was foher exkended for 8 perlod of 30 years and accordingly, a revised linbiling veas sed an an i
10.06%:. Varisble lease paymenis which do now depend on an mden or 4 e s encluded Gom the re-measuremon of the Icasz liabillty and right oFwsc #scrs 1 the thme of modifiearion.
Till the dale of medifieznion of aloraald |ase, some bascs of 1he hords coneincd varishle kase paymens that are basal on revanue camed by the respective bolels in the compamy. Variabke remal paymenis and
estimated impan on rent of 1% incraase in revenue arc 23 fnlows:

g e ol

Berails of rent ¢
For year ended | Esrimated impact For yeaur esded | Extimtcd impact o5
31 Mareh 2035 | omrtof L% 3L March 2024 | o0 of 1% dmcreas:
Inzransa in Reveoue im Ravamua
= K31 09
- a NS] 005
HEE
741 R3
T4l N
pri ] L2
A6T69 bl
Tatal Leaw payments 0017 do.u2
The recanciliation of fexse fabkics i av follws
Particulars . —
3t Minrch 2625 31 March Mod
Opening bilanec 489 461
Additicns (A% -
Amuni resognlied In siakement of profil end boss as. 613 (R4
ieTEs npense
Paymeemd of lcase: Lizbalities (5 65 (079
Closing halance (refor pote 17 and 13) MAE ht )
44 lovepmear property dischmmrcs
] Frepeny B4 0 mamber of ial Dooes that are leased 1o thind panies, Each of Lhe kauses comaing an imnial non-cancelisble poriod of 3 yesrs. Subsonaent renawals ace nepotined with the
ketser. The Company b on Lhe realisabiliny of iry i oy,
(o] ion regarding incame and expendiare of i properly
AL March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Remis| and maimenancs incame derived fram {mveament progerty 5 1815
Less: Direct oparating capmye, ganerailng remal moame A %82
Prodfil arislng Gom property bel inticn and ind|ren ouens 173 %53

During the year onded 31 March 2025, (be Company has reclasslied the remslning writion down value of investment property 10 Right-of-Use {Building) due 1o change of e of the underlying assa block from
commerzial Bpace 1o hotcl oparakions.

Tiil) The Campany has L on the reallsababiny of i property or the ramitiance of incama and prococds of diapoa|

{iv] Fair value mossaremen:

“The Grir vaksc of invesiment properly was di driodt by an dited eniemsl rep: d valuer as defined under Rulbe 2 of Campanics (Registered Yaluers and Walustion) Rubes, 3017, The fir vislue estarciment of
the invesiment propeny has bom cungorisad a3 3 Level 3 Al valwe based on the inpuls 1o the valuation tockpigue wsed

Thexe is oo invoawmens properiy o1 a1 )1 March 2025, The Gir valus of the invesiment properiy 13 11 Warch 2024: INR 92000

) Vislussicm technigue-
The Company follows discounted cash Oows rachniges The valuion model consicrs the present value of oo cash Lows to be gencrared from the property, wking inlo sccoun the sypeacd rental growth mic, vacam
pariods, occupancy rate, beats venllvn ool such @ rent-free periods and ather costs nol paid by kmants. The expacied no eash Dovws are diveouniod wsing riak.adjcsted discodn racs.

45 New shundards 20d isierprecamionss, oof yet sdepied
“Mindsary of Corporale Affairs ("MCA™) notifics new siandards or amendments 10 the exitiing standards under C: s (Indian A i Jards) Rules as Baaed Gom tanie 10 time. On T ey 2025, MCA
Hzoed the Companics (1odian Amnlllg Siandards) Amandment Rules, 2025, which made ecrlain smandmens a2 lod AS 21 The Efkcts of Changes in Forcign Excheangs Raics, eﬂ‘ullu om 1 |'\p|1| 2025, Thes
d def ¥ iliy and include guidance on cuimating spo) cuchangs M when 3 curtency it not cehiigeable. The Comyany doct il cxpest this d ¥ impact
i it financial statements.™
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Moles to Hw Aranciat satementy for 1be yair onfed 31 March 2825
CAN ameuns i Rigpeet Million, ualess otharize stanad)

46 Ratin Analysis and its clements

Ratis in Hmer™% Numerator Diennminator 31 March 2025|301 March 2004
{a) Current Rava 0 mes Currem Assery Current Linbilitbes LR 007
() Dhoba- Equaty Ratic in rimes Tetzl Barrowings Tl oquity (300 .08
() Dcba Serviee Cowarage Rstio in iimes. Profit/ (loss) before finance con, Finance cosis paid + Principal repayments of 0l LA

depeociation and stmortisslion and Lax | fong Kerm borowings
(d} Retwm on Equity Ratio in ¥ Lo for the yoar Average Total equiry 4115 16.32% ~Ta.R1%|
{2} Trnnemiery CaMower rlic in e Cout of marerlal conmemed Avirapa Invomacry 17.63 18,26 -1ty
(1 Trade Roccivablcs iumonwT riie i times Revenue from oporations Average Trade Reccivables 1246 na 2ams
(g) Trada payables iumove ratio i Ve, Cont of muerisls consumed + Oher Averape Trade Payablim 413 350 20.75%|
expenses
() Met copital turmcvor catio in times Revenue from oparations Average working capral (0648) [0.57)) SRR
{1} Noi profin rsin n % Loss R tha yor Revanue from operalions -3.73% <5 68 <74 568
(1} Keturn on Capital cmployed % Famings before fmance cous and wees | Tangible Mol Worth + Torl Bomowings 126 12oms SEET
(k} Retiarn on investment lin % Interest {Finance Incomel NA NA N
Explagarisns to ymrinnce in rutios:
Current Ratin Imcreased due to decresse in the cutrent bormomings.
i oaul
MNaprofimio |
Riturn oo Capilal amplove
The Company has not presended she followmng ratios dez 1o the reasons glven bolow:
{a) Renurn on invaiments: since te Company inwels sarplus empoary unds in shoe torm bank depotics and the income genareled is insignificant b Lee] tumaver
47 Orlor samiery Lafarmaroa

UV Tho Corrpiny docs nod have any Bonamd oMy, wheve any procezding has bean indised or pending sgainsl the Company for holding any Denami property
{ir) The Company docs no bave any wilk i3 aruck afl
{iui) Tin Company deas ol hove any chargas or wifacyon which is yel (o be regi with Begisrar of Compimes ( ROC) beyond the satulory period
(i) The: Compamy hi nod raded or inwated i Cryo cameney or Vicwal Curency daring the Franciel yar.
{¥) The Company has pot advineed or loaned or invsiod flands 1o 20y o her persan(s) or aiily(ics). including eeign et (I irics) with the and dimg that 1he iary shall:

(addiroctly of indiecaly kend or invest in ctber porsons of enitiics idendified in any mannor whatsomeet by of on behsll of the commany (Ullimate Beancfiiarics) or
{b) prenvide amry guarantos, securiiy or the Ik 10 or o behall of the Ultimate Benefisarie

{vid The Conpany ks nol reccived any Gmd Fom any persmis) or eity(ies), including foreign amitics (Funding Party) with the undorstanding (whetber moardod in writing or alherwisa) thar the Company shall:

{47 direaly or indirectly lond ar inwst m othr parsons or entitics idemiifod in any mammer shatsocver by or oo bohall of the Fanding Pany (Wliimaie Benefickrics) of
1} provide any guarsnice, secunty or the like on behalCol the Ukimase BeneRcinnics

Vvii} The Company does not have any such transselion widch it not recocded in Lhe books of aseoanis thin hiss boon surrendered or disclosed 25 income during tee year in the ax assossmanks undar the Incoma Tax Aa,

1961 (3och 35, scarch or survey o any other celevanl prvisions of the Income Tax Ao, 1961 )

{vili) The Campany has pol granted any loans o advances in Uhe vaturé of boans 1o promaters, dirocsars, KMP and the related partics (as defined undar Companics Acl, 20013) cither sewrally or joinlly wilh any other

parson that 7 demand or withoul il e o period of repayrmml

{in) The Campany has osed the borrowinga from bank snd Anancisl instilwtion for he specific pameose for which it was taken
1) The Company has not beon dectared wil il defauber by any bank or Anancial s iurion of g oF any g aulhority.

i} The Company bas complied winh number of layers prescribod the Companies Ac, 2013,
(i} The Company has not enared into any seheme of srangertant which has an accaunting Impact Ib caroi or provious financial year.
{arid) The Company ke nos réevilued iz property, plan and oquip ncluding right of'

gibbe 218012 of btk dharing ke cammonl o previmes yeur,

{aiv) Tha Company b not rapaired 1o Eubmit quancrly clums of sakemenls with banks during tha curmant or previous yar
1eh Tile doods of all immmovable properuas are el in the nsme of the company.

48 Dring the ewront year, SAMEI Hoteds Limited {the Holding Company) has allocied cxpanses amouning INR 93 33 (11 Mml 2024 . I‘IR 15701 ascmy & share of projec expenses and other cost incured. Cul

of iz allocared op, |MR 1265 (31 March 2024 - INB Nil) has botn booked in capital work-in-prograss, 23 i wire ol projecis.
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